
Board of Directors’ 
Packet 

October 30, 2024 

Meeting time is 6:30 p.m. 

Meeting held at 333 Broadway Street 
Rock Springs, WY 



.00

I. Call to Order

II. Declare Quorum

III. Approval of Agenda - pg. 1-2

IV. Approval of Minutes - pg. 3

V. Approval of Minutes for Special Meeting - pg. 4-6

VI. Treasurer’s Report - pg. 7

a. Write-Offs - pg. 8-10

b. Balance Sheet- pg. 11

c. Account Receivables - pg. 12

d. Revenues - pg. 13

e. Expenses - pg. 14-15

f. Check Register - pg. 16-21

VII. Committee Updates

a. Finance

b. Personnel

c. Policy

d. Strategic Planning

VIII. Previous Business - pg. 22
a. Residential Bed Utilization and Drawdown - pg. 23-24
b. Residential Referrals and Admissions - pg. 25-27
c. Title 25 Monthly Information - pg. 28
d. Sweetwater County Title 25 - pg. 29
e. SCS Staffing Report - pg. 30-36
f. Crisis Opioid-Detox Application
g. Dry Creek Trona Project Industrial Siting Impact (Information only)
h. November and December Meeting Dates – November 27 and December 25

IX. New Business

a. 

 Agenda 

October 30, 2024 

333 Broadway Street, Rock Springs, WY 

1



X. Presentations

a. 

XI. CEO’s Report - pg. 37-39

XII. Board Action - pg. 40

a. Crisis Opioid Agreement - pg. 41-67

b. Annual Insurance Premium Approvals

c. Collection Agency Agreement - pg. 68-69

d. Continuation of Contract with Open Minds/Mr. Ray Wolfe

e. Board of Directors Policy & Procedure Manual 2.5 Meetings #5

XIII. Public and Board Comments/Questions

XIV. Executive Session for the purpose of personnel matters

XV. Adjournment

2



Board Meeting 

Minutes 

September 25, 2024

3



Special Board 

Meeting Minutes 

October 16 , 2024 

4



Minutes for  
Southwest Counseling  

Board Of Director Meeting 
Held October 16, 2024 

Via Teams 

1) Meeting Called to Order by Kayleen Logan @6:00pm

Attending: Kayleen Logan, Raven Beattie, April Thompson, Kori Rossetti 
And Kristy Kauppi  

2) Declare Quorum by Kayleen Logan

3) Approval of Agenda
Motion made by Ms. Thompson 
Second by Ms. Rossetti 
Motion passed 

4) Previous Business
a. Explanation of bid process of ARPA grant approvals. Presented by Gene Legerski/William

Wheatley

Mr. William Wheatley explained the proposals which were presented by 3 potential
bidders.  He further explained the Wyoming’s 5% Preference law requires the bid
received by any out-of-state contractor, to carry a minimum margin of 5% lower than the
next available bid, if the next available bid provided is from a Wyoming Resident
Contractor. Therefore, to comply with state law, the bid received by Shepard
Construction Solutions, could not be greater than $997,500 to be considered for award.
Due to limitations of available budget for the project being less than the total base bid, it
is recommended the award be based on the Base Bid, Alternate No. 2 – Additive, and
Alternate No. 3 – Deductive, making the final contract award amount $643,100.00

The recommendation was to award the bid for the FY25 Southwest Counseling Grant
ARPA-HHS-1127 Southwest Counseling Jonah Facility Home project to WS Construction
LLC for $643, 100

It was also discussed that due to weather constraints coming and the inability to do
outside work through the winter, the main concern will focus on the inside of the
building. They will get what they can get done now and look for additional funding in the
future. Ms. Kauppi asked if there are any time constraints around occupancy of the
building and the deadline is December of 2026.

5) Board Action
Motion made by Ms. Thompson
Second by Ms. Rossetti

5



All board members stated name and signified I 
Motion passed 

6) Public and Board Comments/Questions
Ms. Logan wanted to thank everyone involved in this process and appreciates everything
that has been done to get this project

7) Adjournment at 6:18pm
Motion made by Ms. Thompson 
Second made by Ms. Kauppi 
Motion passed. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Kori Rossetti 

6



Treasurer’s   
Report 

7



Client 

Account 

Number

Amount of 

Write-Off

Total -$    

Board Signature

Accounts Receivable Write-Off Request

Self Pay Balances under $25

September-24

Reason for the request for Write-Off

Balances under $25 are reviewed monthly and are only submitted for request when the balance 

is older than one year or the client is deceased or no consent to treat is obtained.

8



Client 

Account 

Number

Amount of 

Write-Off

Total -$    

Accounts Receivable Write-Off Request

Self Pay Balances over $25

September-24

Reason for the request for Write-Off

Balances over $25 are reviewed monthly and are only submitted for request when the balance 

is older than one year or the client is deceased or no consent to treat is obtained.

Board Signature

9



Client 

Account 

Number

Amount of 

Write-Off

Total -$    

Board Signature

Accounts Receivable Write-Off Request

Bankruptcy Discharged

September-24

Bankruptcy Balances are requested for write-off once received by the agency for dismissal.

Reason for the request for Write-Off

10



 Southwest Counseling Service

 Balance Sheet
 As of September 30, 2024

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

1020 · General Operating Account 781,582.04

1031 · Commerce Bank- Cash Reserve 1,108,904.28

Total Checking/Savings 1,890,486.32

Total Current Assets 1,890,486.32

TOTAL ASSETS 1,890,486.32

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities

24000 · Payroll Liabilities 261.37

Total Other Current Liabilities 261.37

Total Current Liabilities 261.37

Total Liabilities 261.37

Equity

32000 · Unrestricted Net Assets 2,138,251.87

Net Income -248,026.92

Total Equity 1,890,224.95

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,890,486.32

The Balance Sheet provides the assets and liabilities for the specific point in time of September 30, 

2024.  The total cash assets are $1,890,486.32.  The previous month's total cash was $2,569,259.61, 

a decrease in cash in the amount of $678,773.29 from the previous month.  The year to date 

expenditures through September 30, 2024 total $4,246,630.28.  The average cost per day of 

operations remained consistent from the previous month at $46,159.02.  Liabilities as of September 

30, 2024 total $261.37.  Based upon all cash balances, SCS is currently at 41 days of cash on hand.

11



FY 2025 Accounts Receivable Report

Sep-24 AR by Days Aging

Beginning Balance Charges Payments Adjustments Ending Balance

0 30 60 90 120

Self Pay 299,808.90$     34,503.57$      (27,812.80)$    (56,301.54)$    250,198.13$     -$     14,332.57$    15,239.86$    26,053.04$  194,572.66$    

Insurance 278,241.29 106,256.80        (27,664.64)           (79,654.18)           277,179.27 85,536.25 110,393.84    29,913.91             11,443.50    39,891.77        

Medicaid 97,151.15 40,914.63          (25,195.57)           (13,704.69)           99,165.52 35,813.00 17,490.61      24,450.74             8,725.71      12,685.46        

Medicare 9,560.86 5,214.99             (1,697.44)             (8,355.22)             4,723.19 - 3,084.80         209.16 789.81          639.42 

EAP 23,063.49 5,251.33             (1,771.35)             (14,094.84)           12,448.63 - 6,497.84 3,386.33 230.00          2,334.46           

Client Contracts 41,921.15 16,438.12          (8,876.90)             (21,683.71)           27,798.66 - 14,361.11      13,437.55             - - 

Collection 1,522,805.09            37,139.28          (2,439.16)             (506,393.60)        1,051,111.61 - 63,885.89      15.02 - 987,210.70      

State Contracts 725,465.23 684,147.98        (604,963.69)        (138,113.35)        666,536.17 266,156.66            235,317.36    165,046.15          16.00            - 

Cancellation/No Show 18,654.28 980.00 (324.89) (45.00) 19,264.39 945.00 696.00            752.00 709.00          16,162.39        

Total 749,746.84$     671,513.40$     121,349.25$      166,160.77$  86,637.55$      47,242.06$  250,123.77$    

Aug-24 AR by Days Aging

Beginning Balance Charges Payments Adjustments Ending Balance

0 30 60 90 120

Self Pay 303,033.67$     32,245.76$      (19,252.62)$    (16,217.91)$    299,808.90$     15,376.16$    9,046.52$      29,185.21$    29,225.41$  216,975.60$    

Insurance 264,049.64 99,079.52          (50,340.18)           (34,547.69)           278,241.29 91,888.75 94,532.19      35,210.51             11,143.34    45,466.50        

Medicaid 110,456.83 43,498.39          (37,473.86)           (19,330.21)           97,151.15 38,395.71 31,438.54      11,843.89             8,160.49      7,312.45           

Medicare 7,373.42 4,567.87             (1,820.42)             (560.01) 9,560.86 3,743.83 3,859.57         1,369.38 (30.33)           618.41 

EAP 18,725.49 10,263.83          (1,743.33)             (4,182.50)             23,063.49 7,037.50 5,886.33         4,926.33 1,648.33      3,565.00           

Client Contracts 30,574.88 21,556.26          (17,354.70)           7,144.71 41,921.15 5,641.10 13,888.32      13,834.63             7,547.88      1,009.22           

Collection 1,499,669.19            27,995.06          (1,236.09)             (3,623.07)             1,522,805.09 - 50.02 2,472.67 4,269.51      1,516,012.89   

State Contracts 407,551.99 630,479.95        (383,102.77)        70,536.06            725,465.23 414,046.87            299,119.27    12,299.09             - - 

Cancellation/No Show 18,374.28 960.00 (322.00) (358.00) 18,654.28 820.00 807.00            744.00 600.00          15,683.28        

Total 734,213.93$     749,746.84$     162,083.05$      158,651.47$  96,369.95$      57,695.12$  274,947.18$    

Changes from Previous Month

Charges Payments Adjustments Ending Balance

Self Pay 2,257.81$    (8,560.18)$     (40,083.63)$    (49,610.77)$    

Insurance 7,177.28$    22,675.54$      (45,106.49)$    (1,062.02)$     

Medicaid (2,583.76)$     12,278.29$      5,625.52$      2,014.37$      

Medicare 647.12$      122.98$     (7,795.21)$     (4,837.67)$     

EAP (5,012.50)$     (28.02)$      (9,912.34)$     (10,614.86)$    

Client Contracts (5,118.14)$     8,477.80$      (28,828.42)$    (14,122.49)$    

-$      

Amount Increase/Decrease (2,632.19)$     34,966.41$      (126,100.57)$      (78,233.44)$    

The total outstanding balance for amounts owed to Southwest Counseling Service for August 2024 is $671,513.40  The 

receivables decreased from the previous month due to higher payments in this period. The total receivables excludes Collection, 

State Contracts and Cancellation/No show fees.  

12



Southwest Counseling Service 25%

Revenues FY25

State Contracts  FY25 Budget Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 % Month YTD %YTD Difference

Outpatient Services

MH - Outpatient 1,038,642.78$     252,736.36$      25,578.35$     51,877.89$     5% 330,192.60$     32% (708,450.18)$    

MH - CARF 14,015.00 3,410.32 305.78 305.78 2% 4,021.88 29% (9,993.12) 

MH- Direct Care Salaries 182,343.00 44,370.13           4,252.38 11,264.46           6% 59,886.97 33% (122,456.03)            

MH- Emergency Services 29,218.00 7,109.71 637.48 637.48 2% 8,384.67 29% (20,833.33) 

MH- Regional Med. Management 133,729.00 32,540.72           2,917.72 2,917.72 2% 38,376.16 29% (95,352.84) 

MH- Regional Nursing Support 41,291.00 10,047.48           900.89 900.89 2% 11,849.26 29% (29,441.74) 

MH- Regional Early Intervention 53,302.00 12,970.15           1,162.95 1,162.95 2% 15,296.05 29% (38,005.95) 

MH- ESMI 56,277.73 4,490.07 7,686.62 7,686.62 14% 19,863.31 35% (36,414.42) 

MH- Jail Based Services 50,000.00 12,166.67           1,090.91 1,090.91 2% 14,348.49 29% (35,651.51) 

SA - Outpatient 606,870.00 147,671.66         13,240.81           25,038.50           4% 185,950.97           31% (420,919.03)            

SA- Direct Care Salaries 313,899.00 76,382.09           6,848.71 9,567.31 3% 92,798.11 30% (221,100.89)            

SA - CARF 6,100.00 1,484.33 133.09 133.09 2% 1,750.51 29% (4,349.49) 

SA - HB 308 454,450.00 110,582.84         9,915.27 9,915.27 2% 130,413.38           29% (324,036.62)            

MH & SA- Peer Specialist 90,000.00 21,900.00           1,963.64 1,963.64 2% 25,827.28 29% (64,172.72) 

CCRS 208,800.00 50,808.00           4,555.64 4,555.64 2% 59,919.28 29% (148,880.72)            

MH - LT Group Home -Sweetwater 632,675.31 153,950.99         20,123.10           22,988.82           4% 197,062.91           31% (435,612.40)            

MH - LT Group Home - Uinta 517,643.44 125,959.90         25,696.12           32,607.40           6% 184,263.42           36% (333,380.02)            

SOR- Medication Assisted Treatment 483,000.00 105,800.00         55,705.00           - 0% 161,505.00           33% (321,495.00)            

SA - Peer Review 2,500.00 - - 0% - 0% (2,500.00) 

Mitigation 1,830.00 - - 0% - 0% (1,830.00) 

CCBHC

CCBHC 1,000,000.00            - 0% - 0% (1,000,000.00)        

Regional Services - MH

MH- Transitional Grp - Sweetwater 438,588.46 106,806.29         21,961.38           22,532.80           5% 151,300.47           34% (287,287.99)            

MH - SIP- Sweetwater 155,302.06 37,790.29           3,388.41 15,036.09           10% 56,214.79 36% (99,087.27) 

MH- SIP- Uinta County 207,069.41 50,386.89           12,216.82           10,694.68           5% 73,298.39 35% (133,771.02)            

MH- Transitional Grp - Uinta 389,856.40 94,865.05           16,234.26           19,022.34           5% 130,121.65           33% (259,734.75)            
  MH - Sub-Acute Crisis Residential 397,917.00 102,927.68         20,394.47           26,336.14           7% 149,658.29           38% (248,258.71)            
  MH - Sub-Acute Crisis Residential Uinta 79,583.00 13,263.84           1,736.36 14,982.14           19% 29,982.34 38% (49,600.66) 

Regional Services - SA

SA - Residential 2,241,069.28            545,326.83         49,021.05           154,052.45         7% 748,400.33           33% (1,492,668.95)        

SA- Residential Women and Children 703,347.15 171,147.80         32,720.75           39,845.75           6% 243,714.30           35% (459,632.85)            

SA- Transitional (SL) 199,290.49 48,494.03           12,916.11           4,348.15 2% 65,758.29 33% (133,532.20)            

SA- Detox 136,417.08 33,194.82           2,976.37 25,058.37           18% 61,229.56 45% (75,187.52) 

Quality of Life

MH - Quality of Life 102,730.00 9,116.00 14,533.00           3,902.00 4% 27,551.00 27% (75,179.00) 

SA- Quality of Life 23,680.00 5,010.00 5,010.00 337.00 1% 10,357.00 44% (13,323.00) 

General Funds

County 650,488.00 56,917.67           56,917.67           56,917.67           9% 170,753.01           26% (479,734.99)            

Client Fees 370,000.00 23,995.81           19,493.46           24,020.75           6% 67,510.02 18% (302,489.98)            

Insurance 631,305.00 42,075.47           50,329.24           27,664.64           4% 120,069.35           19% (511,235.65)            

Medicaid 557,825.00 27,218.70           37,473.86           25,195.57           5% 89,888.13 16% (467,936.87)            

Medicare 44,325.00 1,711.13 1,820.42 1,697.44 4% 5,228.99 12% (39,096.01) 

EAP 61,375.00 1,907.84 1,743.33 1,771.35 3% 5,422.52 9% (55,952.48) 

DFS 5,000.00 197.74 875.00 18% 1,072.74 21% (3,927.26) 

DVR/DDS 2,000.00 341.50 175.00 194.50 10% 711.00 36% (1,289.00) 

Medical Service Fees 112,000.00 3,563.20 892.00 6,003.80 5% 10,459.00 9% (101,541.00)            

Food Stamps 99,520.00 4,302.63 8,274.70 310.40 0% 12,887.73 13% (86,632.27) 

Grants and Contracts

General Contracts 110,500.00 19,052.46           8,855.00 547.00 0% 28,454.46 26% (82,045.54) 

Treatment Court 82,800.00 6,900.00 8% 6,900.00 8% (75,900.00) 

Federal Probation 4,000.00 0% - 0% (4,000.00) 

County Prevention 243,229.00 18,283.60           6,779.33 12,609.27           5% 37,672.20 15% (205,556.80)            

ARPA Capital Construction 1,780,217.00            67,501.18           71,592.14           4% 139,093.32           8% (1,641,123.68)        

VOA BHR 270,000.00 0% - 0% (270,000.00)            

Miscellaneous Funds

Operations Carryover 2,900,000.00            2,900,000.00     0% 2,900,000.00        100% - 

Reserve 1,383,095.50            1,383,095.50     0% 1,383,095.50        100% - 

Interest Earned 22,000.00 2,610.96 2,826.54 2,177.33 10% 7,614.83 35% (14,385.17) 

Commissary Funds 5,700.00 374.25 436.19 552.30 10% 1,362.74 24% (4,337.26) 

Miscellaneous 15,000.00 3,606.66 550.00 50.00 0% 4,206.66 28% (10,793.34) 

Total Revenues  $    16,058,720.59  $   6,949,467.24  $      572,390.18  $      759,841.44 5%  $     8,281,698.86 52%  $     (7,777,021.73)

Total Revenue excluding carryover 20,341,816.09$    3,998,603.36$      20%

13



Southwest Counseling Service 25%

Expenditures FY25

Personnel  FY25 Budget Sep-24 % Month YTD %YTD Difference

Salaries 7,918,379.34$    586,802.71$    7% 1,819,988.54$     23% (6,098,390.80)     

FICA 685,470.00 42,611.72           6% 132,505.32 19% (552,964.68)         

Wyoming Retirement 1,203,450.00          108,290.94         9% 330,642.26 27% (872,807.74)         

Health Insurance 2,138,440.00          198,391.82         9% 582,035.02 27% (1,556,404.98)     

Life Insurance 35,700.00 4,133.05 12% 12,073.69 34% (23,626.31)           

Worker's Compensation 49,000.00 4,471.14 9% 13,863.72 28% (35,136.28)           

Unemployment 25,000.00 - 0% 4,979.96 20% (20,020.04)           

Wellness 13,580.00 841.56 6% 2,208.05 16% (11,371.95)           

Background Check 11,010.00 588.45 5% 3,064.02 28% (7,945.98) 

Contracts 513,000.00 53,324.20           10% 137,554.84 27% (375,445.16)         
Contract- Transitional Grp - Uinta 389,856.40 78,611.28           20% 119,605.27 31% (270,251.13)         

Contract - SIP Uinta County 207,069.41 45,347.92           22% 67,121.58 32% (139,947.83)         

Contract - Sub-Acute Crisis Stabilization 79,583.00 21,932.90           28% 30,301.18 38% (49,281.82)           

Contract - LT Group Home - Uinta 517,643.44 110,796.95         21% 165,227.94 32% (352,415.50)         

Consultation 10,000.00 3,132.00 31% 4,405.00 44% (5,595.00) 

Recruitment 8,225.00 154.98 2% 951.93 12% (7,273.07) 

Travel/Vehicle Expenses

Travel-Mileage Reimbursement 12,000.00 922.22 8% 2,644.86 22% (9,355.14) 

Vehicle Fuel 28,300.00 1,116.18 4% 4,772.02 17% (23,527.98)           

Vehicle Maintenance 16,000.00 1,073.56 7% 4,140.20 26% (11,859.80)           

Conference and Seminar Travel 22,600.00 1,279.21 6% 4,180.87 18% (18,419.13)           

Training 30,000.00 3,639.05 12% 10,853.07 36% (19,146.93)           

Operating

Supplies 164,748.00 14,754.94           9% 31,957.86 19% (132,790.14)         

Food 235,295.00 27,531.90           12% 66,732.93 28% (168,562.07)         

Rent 113,400.00 12,484.00           11% 40,567.74 36% (72,832.26)           

Utilities 192,454.00 17,661.21           9% 53,551.90 28% (138,902.10)         

Insurance- G&P/ Vehicles 160,590.00 - 0% 125.00 0% (160,465.00)         

Advertising 35,500.00 8,700.00 25% 20,840.64 59% (14,659.36)           

Books/Magazines/Video 4,000.00 315.42 8% 1,215.12 30% (2,784.88) 

Client/Insurance Refund 3,000.00 - 0% 175.00 6% (2,825.00) 

Computer Hardware 86,000.00 139.93 0% 484.08 1% (85,515.92)           

Computer Software 475,505.00 4,052.04 1% 245,321.29 52% (230,183.71)         

Computer Maintenance 10,000.00 - 0% - 0% (10,000.00)           

Computer Communication 57,000.00 3,367.38 6% 9,473.88 17% (47,526.12)           

Equipment 118,220.00 3,975.15 3% 14,099.73 12% (104,120.27)         

Leased Equipment 50,000.00 4,942.57 10% 12,174.20 24% (37,825.80)           

Maintenance 182,400.00 8,596.69 5% 25,077.83 14% (157,322.17)         

Postage 12,250.00 502.25 4% 2,559.05 21% (9,690.95) 

Cleaning Supplies 18,205.00 489.57 3% 1,932.30 11% (16,272.70)           

Telephone 74,000.00 9,496.02 13% 58,343.76 79% (15,656.24)           

Testing and Materials 20,000.00 795.50 4% 4,297.00 21% (15,703.00)           

Drug Testing 25,000.00 1,874.05 7% 7,031.18 28% (17,968.82)           

Client Medical 175,000.00 5,084.00 3% 27,564.41 16% (147,435.59)         

Client Rx 15,000.00 8,328.46 56% 22,640.07 151% 7,640.07 

APRN Medical Lab Fees 20,000.00 3,646.71 18% 5,544.71 28% (14,455.29)           

Recreation 3,850.00 231.43 6% 914.02 24% (2,935.98) 

Membership Dues 30,000.00 350.00 1% 1,238.00 4% (28,762.00)           

Collection Agency 2,000.00 95.00 5% 264.60 13% (1,735.40) 

CARF 20,115.00 - 0% 1,095.00 5% (19,020.00)           

MH Quality of Life

Medical  55,030.00 3,928.73 7% 12,378.23 22% (42,651.77)           

Emergency Subsistence 3,200.00 172.47 5% 822.22 26% (2,377.78) 

RX 15,000.00 3,103.82 21% 6,874.56 46% (8,125.44) 

Housing 5,100.00 112.00 2% 181.00 4% (4,919.00) 

Transportation 15,400.00 404.93 3% 573.89 4% (14,826.11)           

Recreation 1,000.00 - 0% - 0% (1,000.00) 

Community Center 8,000.00 - 0% - 0% (8,000.00) 

Regional Quality of Life

Regional Quality of Life 23,680.00 1,625.73 7% 4,991.79 21% (18,688.21)           

Miscellaneous Expenses

14



Finance Charge 2,000.00 - 0% - 0% (2,000.00) 

Credit Card Fees 20,000.00 1,119.81 6% 3,194.95 16% (16,805.05)           

Other Expenses 32,255.00 78.99 0% 6,992.66 22% (25,262.34)           

Debt Service/Capital Maintenance

Capital 830,000.00 - 0% - 0% (830,000.00)         

ARPA Funding Capital Projects 3,113,312.50          13,636.60           0% 92,751.74 3% (3,020,560.76)     

Total Expenses  $      20,341,816.09  $   1,429,059.14 7%  $     4,237,101.68 21%   (16,104,714.41)

15



Southwest Counseling Service 

October 2024 Check Register

Check No. Vendor Program Check Amt. Description

117353 Amazon Admin., TC, Century, Duran, 

WAP, Crisis, Detox, Bridges, 

Transitions, Independence, 

Continental

 $    3,281.77 Office supplies; emergency 

supplies for vehicles; cleaning 

products; hygiene products; floor 

mats for vehicles

117354 Century Link TC, Recovery 111.34 Monthly telephone service 9/25-

10/24/24

117355 CenturyLink 

Business Services - 

Lumen

Mental Health 2,238.84 Business IP, data, and voice 

service

117356 First Bankcard Admin., QOL, Mental Health, 

Recovery, Duran, Century, TC, 

WAP, Prevention, Child & Adol., 

3-SOR-MAT, SAQOL, CCBHC

13,087.54 Vehicle fuel; client Rx, medical, 

and transportation covered under 

QOL grant; office whiteboard; 

Cognitive Processing Therapy 

Training; Dialectical Behavior 

Therapy Training; QPR instructor 

booklet & cards; recruitment; 

advertisement; power tool 

batteries; propane; computer 

hardware; computer maintenance; 

baby formula; food; refund for tax 

charge; Netsmart Connections 

conference Gaylord, TX; client Rx 

covered under 3-SOR-MAT; Pat 

Swan-Smith Retreats

117357 Insurance 

Information 

Exchange

Century, Duran, Admin., 

Recovery, Mental Health, Crisis, 

Medical, Transitions, Bridges

174.29 Motor vehicle reports 

117358 Kum&Go Fleet Independence, Transitions, 

Recovery, Crisis, Detox, Duran, 

Century, Continental, Admin., 

WAP, TC

1,662.54 Fuel for SCS vehicles

117359 Leaf Prior SVC By 

TimePayment

Bridges, Mental Health 120.00 Monthly water system 

117360 LocumTenens Psychiatric 15,602.92 Services Rendered From 9/9-

9/26/24

117361 Nicholas & Company Century, Duran, WAP, Bridges, 

Transitions, Continental, 

Independence

5,968.61 Food and paper supplies

117362 Verizon Wireless Mental Health, Admin., Child & 

Adol., Recovery, TC, Bridges, 

Medical, Emergency, 

Independence, Duran, WAP, 

Continental, Transitions

855.57 Residential homes, agency 

phones, and notebook line access 

monthly charges- 8/16-9/15/24

117363 Western Star 

Communications 

LLC

Mental Health, TC 275.00 Business answering service and 

transaction usage for October 

2024

117364 White Mountain 

Water & Sewer 

District

WAP, Duran 679.54 Water and sewer reading from 

8/15-9/16/24

117365 Wyo Waste Mental Health, Duran, WAP, 

Century, Bridges, Medical, TC, 

Recovery, Child & Adol.

2,099.73 Monthly waste collection 9/1-

9/30/24

117366 Pioneer Counseling Admin 38,858.41 September bed days

16



Southwest Counseling Service 

October 2024 Check Register

117367 All West 

Communications

Continental, Mental Health, 

WAP, Century, Sober Living, 

TC, Recovery, Transitions, 

Crisis, Detox, Independence

3,252.21 Business internet service 10/1-

10/31/24

117368 Pitney Bowes 

Purchase Power

TC, Recovery 1,009.75 Meter refill- SN-0378038

117369 RMP- Rocky 

Mountain Power

Century, Child & Adol., Mental 

Health, Transitions, Duran, 

WAP, Sober Living, SIP, 

Continental, Crisis, Detox, 

Independence

3,691.17 Monthly energy and power 

readings 8/27-10/2/24

117370 RS Municipal Utility Bridges, Medical, TC, Recovery, 

Century, Transitions, 

Independence, Continental, 

Crisis, Detox, Admin., Mental 

Health, Child & Adol.

3,993.10 Monthly water and sewer readings 

8/27-9/25/24

117371 Wal-Mart Sober Living, Century, Duran, 

WAP, Crisis, Detox, 

Independence, Transitions, 

Continental, 3 SOR-MAT, 

Admin., Bridges, TC, Recovery, 

QOL

6,718.51 Food, cleaning supplies, client 

Rx, and consumables

117372 Altitude Analysis Admin 425.00 Background testing for potential 

employees- 9/17-9/26/24

117373 Ace Hardware Admin., Child & Adol., Century 161.84 General hardware; pleated air 

filters, qty: 8

117374 AdTel International, 

Inc.

TC, Mental Health 1,425.00 Software & Support License, qty: 

1; Software & Support Additional 

Loc., qty: 2; Full Time Monthly 

Provider, qty: 13; Part Time 

Monthly Provider, qty: 5; e-forms 

FT, qty: 13; e-forms part time, qty: 

5; Extreme Part Time; Surveys; 

10-DLC

117375 All Pro Storage Admin 270.00 Monthly storage for units A-8, A-

10, & C-3

117376 Amazon Century, Duran, WAP, TC, 

Crisis, Detox

226.23 Office supplies; clear organizers 

with lids

117377 Aspen Construction Duran, Century, Mental Health, 

Child & Adol., Transitions, 

WAP, Sober Living

2,450.00 Mow lawns 9/15, 9/22, & 9/28; 

drain coolers and cover at 

Washakie, Rosen, and Duran; 

remove AC units at Sober Living

117378 CDW Government Admin 4,144.52 Paging & notification software 

renewal (Syn-Apps Revolution)

117379 Century Link TC, Recovery, Mental Health, 

Bridges, Medical

291.73 Monthly telephone service 10/7-

11/6/24

117380 CenturyLink 

Business Services - 

Lumen

TC, Recovery, Admin., Bridges, 

Medical

3,116.54 Business IP, data, and voice 

service

117381 Copier & Supply Mental Health, TC, Recovery, 

Admin., Bridges, Medical

2,157.18 Contract base rate charges for 

SAVIN/MP copiers; staple refill

117382 Crum Electric Supply Bridges, Medical 217.22 LED premium quality lighting 

supplies

17



Southwest Counseling Service 

October 2024 Check Register

117383 Dominion Energy Sober Living, SIP, Continental, 

Bridges, Medical, Crisis, Detox, 

Transitions, TC, Recovery, 

Independence, Admin., Mental 

Health, Child & Adol.

1,292.30 Monthly gas service from 9/11-

10/14/24

117384 Eagle Uniform & 

Supply Co.

TC, Recovery, Mental Health 772.82 Office rugs maintenance- 9/19-

10/10/24

117385 Electronic Network 

System

Admin 95.99 EDI Claims; Remittance Advice

117386 Farmers Brothers TC, Recovery, Bridges 1,505.30 House blend coffee, qty: 12; 

decaf house blend, qty: 2 (Fills 

are usually done once per month, 

per location)

117387 Fire Suppression 

Services Inc.

TC, Recovery 1,797.48 Performed an inspection on the 

kitchen hood fire system & re-

piped range guard appliance 

nozzles due to grill replacement

117388 Green River Star Admin 386.00 Health & fitness advertisement; 

call for bids regarding Modular

117389 Hagemann, Andrew CCBHC, 3-SOR-MAT 13,335.00 Contractual Project Evaluator for 

CCBHC grant (Covers dates 7/15-

10/4/24)

117390 High Security Lock & 

Alarm

Bridges, Medical 440.00 Annual alarm monitoring 11/25/24-

11/24/25

117391 Home Depot- Credit 

Services

TC, Bridges, Duran, Sober 

Living, Crisis, Detox, Century

449.45 General maintenance hardware; 

tools; mouse traps; Ladera 

kitchen faucet; acrylic faucet 

handle; propane tank exchange

117392 Hunter Family 

Medical Clinic, P.C.

QOL 129.00 Client lab fees covered under 

QOL grant

117393 JM Electrical Inc. Century 199.02 Repair wires and capacitor on A/C 

unit

117394 JME Fire Protection, 

Inc.

Bridges, Medical, SIP 394.72 Annual stored pressure 

inspections

117395 Johnson Controls TC, Recovery 1,255.00 Updated programming for VMA 

Controller ( Prep work for boiler 

com job)

117396 Kronos Admin 1,568.25 UKG Ready Time- Timekeeping 

software

117397 LocumTenens Psychiatric 7,201.34 Services Rendered From 9/23-

10/1/24

117398 Marianne Emden 3-SOR-MAT 900.00 Client housing for October 

covered under 3-SOR-MAT grant

117399 McKesson Medical-

Surgical, Inc.

Medical 544.91 Medical supplies

117400 Nicholas & Company Century, Duran, WAP, Bridges, 

Transitions, Independence, 

Continental , Mental Health

7,198.81 Food and paper supplies

117401 Petty Cash QOL, Transitions, Continental, 

Independence

398.80 Client transportation covered 

under QOL grant; food and 

recreation for Bridges clients

117402 Pioneer Counseling Admin 26,054.24 October payment

117403 Reece, Sidney Admin 2,058.50 Contractual employee

117404 Refresh Design 

Studio

Admin 1,101.25 Website maintenance

18



Southwest Counseling Service 

October 2024 Check Register

117405 Rocket Miner BHD-Media 4,200.00 Media advertisement covered 

under BHD-Media Grant

117406 RMP- Rocky 

Mountain Power

TC, Recovery, Bridges, Medical 3,572.08 Monthly energy and power 

readings ending 10/8/2024

117407 Rocky Mountain Air 

Solutions

Medical 116.20 Industrial liquid nitrogen delivery

117408 Royal Flush Prevention 1,102.00 Suicide prevention bathroom ads 

for September and October

117409 RS Winnelson Century 16.98 Water valve

117410 SCS QOL 3,831.00 Client medical fees covered by 

QOL Grant

117411 SCS 3-SOR-MAT 680.00 Client medical fees covered by 3-

SOR-MAT Grant

117412 SCS QOL 146.00 Medical client fee covered under 

QOL grant

117413 Shadow Ridge Sober Living 5,800.00 November rent for recovery 

clients

117414 Silver Ridge Village SIP 6,868.80 November rent and September 

utilities for SIP apartments

117415 Smiths 3 SOR-MAT, QOL, WAP, 

Century, Duran

6,511.76 Client RX; commissary items; 

med room supplies

117416 Sovos Compliance, 

LLC

Admin 255.52 Sovos UPExchange (Cloud) - 

Unclaimed property software

117417 Stericycle TC, Recovery 618.50 Steri-safe budget subscription 

from 9/1-11/30/24 additional 

container charge

117418 Swan-Smith, Patricia Recovery, CCBHC 8,094.80 Contract services rendered 9/19-

10/11/24; Retreats paid for by 

CCBHC grant 9/20-10/7/24

117419 SweetwaterNOW Admin 2,050.00 Suicide prevention advertisement

117420 Terminix Bridges, Medical 66.00 Pesticide control

117421 Top-Tech Auto 

Service

TC 1,840.22 Replace front and rear shocks, 

rear drum, rear shoes, and 

transmission service on 2008 

Dodge Caliber, VIN: 544866

117422 U.S. Bank TC, Recovery 1,929.18 Leased copy/printers

117423 Unclaimed Property 

Division Oklahoma 

State Treasurer

Admin 22.38 Unclaimed wages, payroll, or 

salary, qty: 1

117424 University of Utah 

Medical Center - 

Psych

Psychiatric 8,781.25 Services rendered from 9/3-

9/30/24

117425 US Standard 

Products

TC, Recovery, Century, Duran, 

WAP, Crisis, Detox

422.29 Antibacterial hand soap

117426 Wakefield & 

Associates LLC

Admin 153.00 Collections payments

117427 Wal-Mart Sober Living, Century, Duran, 

WAP, Crisis, Detox, 

Independence, Transitions, 

Admin., Bridges, TC, Recovery, 

QOL

2,888.11 Food; cleaning supplies; client 

Rx, booster seat; high chair; 

carpet shampooer; and 

consumables

117428 WyoData Security 

Inc.

Mental Health, Bridges, Medical 345.00 Confidential paper collection and 

disposal

117429 Wyoming 

Department of 

Health

Medical 581.00 Client Lab fees rendered 9/1-

9/23/24

117430 Wyoming Unclaimed 

Property Division

Admin 1,050.82 Unclaimed wages, payroll, or 

salary, qty: 1; customer 

overpayments, qty: 24

19



Southwest Counseling Service 

October 2024 Check Register

117431 WyoRadio Admin, BHD-Media 4,736.00 Adult overconsumption ads for 

August; Suicide prevention ads 

for September; September & 

October BHD Media ads

117432 YESCO Outdoor 

Media

BHD-Media 750.00 Advertisement posted 10/21-

11/17/24 covered under BHD-

Media Grant

117433 Bauer, Michael Mental Health 12.06 Employee reimbursements

117434 Bramwell, Kimberly Mental Health 40.00 Employee reimbursements

117435 Brown, Rhonda TC 162.61 Employee reimbursements

117436 Christensen, 

Vanessa

Medical 16.08 Employee reimbursements

117437 Cook, Rae Admin 72.36 Employee reimbursements

117438 Coon, Olivia Admin 9.71 Employee reimbursements

117439 Gilmore, Stephani Recovery 85.76 Employee reimbursements

117440 Gomez, Janell Mental Health 21.44 Employee reimbursements

117441 Grenier, Dana Medical 735.00 Employee reimbursements 

(National-ANCE Certification, 

APRN-State Renewal, RN-State 

Renewal)

117442 Haney, Shaelyn Prevention 82.31 Employee reimbursements

117443 Jarvie, Clay CCBHC 380.87 Employee reimbursements

117444 Keith, Kaleb Admin 42.21 Employee reimbursements

117445 Lee, Corina Admin 8.04 Employee reimbursements

117446 Lux, Jason Prevention 32.96 Employee reimbursements

117447 Miller, Samantha Mental Health 379.00 Employee reimbursements

117448 Moser, Amy Admin 215.54 Employee reimbursements

117449 Norton, Krystle Recovery 153.43 Employee reimbursements

117450 Robbins, Elisa Mental Health 37.52 Employee reimbursements

117451 Swanson, Stephanie Recovery 37.37 Employee reimbursements

117452 Ward, Jeremiah Century 49.44 Employee reimbursements

117453 Wray-Marchetti, 

Melissa

Admin. 40.00 Employee reimbursements

Blomquist Hale 

Consulting

Personnel Wellness/EAP 

Sweetwater County 

Section 125

Payroll Deduction Payroll Liability

Empower Trust 

Company, LLC

Payroll Deduction Payroll Liability

Goldman Sachs 529 

Plan

Payroll Deduction Payroll Liability

NCPERS Wyoming Payroll Deduction Payroll Liability

Wyoming Retirement 

System

Personnel Payroll Liability

Aflac Payroll Deduction Payroll Liability

Sweetwater County 

Health Savings 

Account

Personnel and Payroll 

Deductions

Payroll Liability

Sweetwater County 

Claim Fund

Personnel and Payroll 

Deductions

Payroll Liability

Aflac Group Payroll Deduction Payroll Liability

Transamerica Personnel Group Life Insurance

Circuit Court Third 

Judicial District

Payroll Deduction Payroll Liability

EFTPS Aspire Payroll Deduction Payroll Liability

EFTPS RSNB Personnel and Payroll 

Deductions

Payroll Taxes

20



Southwest Counseling Service 

October 2024 Check Register

300001-

300003 

&400026-

400033 & 

Electronic

Salaries Payroll  Salaries

$257,686.88

21



Previous 
Business 

22



FY25 Drawdown of Residential 
Funding  

*Based on FY24 Funding
Levels Target is 25% YTD 

Goal is 8.33%/mo 

Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 FY25 YTD 

Total SUD 70 beds 

 $ 
1,968,074.40 SUD Rates 

Bed Days Provided: 1785 1924 1826 5535 
SUD 
Residential 

 $ 
125.00 

Provided: $165,800.84 $187,356.80  $190,470.98 
 $543,628.62 

Social Detox 
 $ 
141.10 

YTD Provided: $165,800.84 $353,157.64  $543,628.62 Sober Living 
 $  
30.82 

$ Needed per Month: $164,006.20 $164,006.20  $164,006.20 
 $1,802,273.56 

Deficit/Overage:  $1,794.64  $23,350.60  $26,464.78 

Monthly Utilization: 101.09% 114.24% 116.14% 
27.62% 

YTD Utilization: 101.09% 107.67% 110.49% 

Total MH 32 beds  $ 735,939.50  MH Rates 

Bed Days Provided: 731 749 773 2253 Transitional 
 $  
83.10 

Provided:  $42,740.40  $43,076.10  $45,225.44 
 $131,041.94 

Long Term 
 $  
73.48 

YTD Provided:  $42,740.40  $85,816.50  $131,041.94 SIP 
 $  
22.06 

$ Needed per Month:  $61,328.29  $61,328.29  $61,328.29 
 $693,199.10 

Deficit/Overage: $(18,587.89) $(18,252.19)  $(16,102.85) 

Monthly Utilization: 69.69% 70.24% 73.74% 
17.81% 

YTD Utilization: 69.69% 69.96% 70.64% 

23



Sub-Acute  5 beds  $ 238,750.20 Sub-Acute Rate 

Bed Days Provided: 59 74 68 201  Sub-Acute  
 $ 
240.75 

Provided: $14,204.25  $7,815.50  $16,371.00 
 $48,390.75 

YTD Provided: 
 $  

14,204.25 
 $  

32,019.75 
 $  

48,390.75 

$ Needed per Month:  $19,895.85  $19,895.85  $19,895.85 
 $224,545.95 

Deficit/Overage:  $(5,691.60)  $(2,080.35)  $(3,524.85) 

Monthly Utilization: 71.39% 89.54% 82.28% 
20.27% 

   YTD Utilization: 71.39% 80.47% 82.28% 

Overall 107 beds  $ 2,942,764.10 
Bed Days Provided: 2575 2747 2667 7989 

Provided: $222,745.49 $248,248.40 $252,067.42 
 $ 723,061.31 

YTD Provided: $222,745.49 $470,993.89  $723,061.31 

$ Needed per Month: $245,230.34 $245,230.34  $245,230.34 
 $ 2,471,770.21 

Deficit/Overage: $(22,484.85) $102,213.82  $102,213.82 

YTD Deficit/Overage: $(22,484.85) $(19,466.79)  $(12,629.71)  $ (19,466.79) 

Monthly Utilization: 90.83% 101.23% 102.79% 
24.57% 

YTD Utilization: 90.83% 96.03% 98.28% 

24



FY 25 Residential Referral and Admissions Report 

17

8

1

12

7

2

6

3 2
4

7

2

2

1

1

8

1

5

3

2

8

3

3

1

1

1 1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

TC/WAP Social Detox MH Res Sub-Acute TC/WAP Social Detox MH Res Sub-Acute TC/WAP Social Detox MH Res Sub-Acute

24-Jul 24-Aug 24-Sep

Residential Referrals and Admissions

Admitted Non-Admits Pending Admission Denied

25



2

0

1 1 1

2 2

0

1 1

22

0

1

3

1 1

2

0

1

2

3

TC/WAP Social Detox MH Res Sub-Acute TC/WAP Social Detox MH Res Sub-Acute TC/WAP Social Detox MH Res Sub-Acute

24-Jul 24-Aug 24-Sep

Reason for Non-Admits

2

11 1 1 1

0

1

2

TC/WAP Social Detox MH Res Sub-Acute TC/WAP Social Detox MH Res Sub-Acute TC/WAP Social Detox MH Res Sub-Acute

24-Jul 24-Aug 24-Sep

Reason for Denials

Sex Offender Conflict Wrong Level of Care Behavioral Issue Out of State

26



43 Combined        31 Combined 38 Combined 

25

18
17

2
1

0

4 4

9

4

2

0

2
1

4
3

2

6

2 2
1 1

2

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24

Combined Residential Referrals

Criminal Justice System T-25 Step Down Self DFS WBI/WSH SCS Medical Other Tx Provider

27



28



Adult Juvenile Grand Total

March 2024 Totals Total Total

Total Patients 5 2 7
Released within 23 hours/next day 4 2 6
Released within 48 hours
Released within 72 hours 1 1
Total Patients Hospitalized

Adult Juvenile Grand Total

April 2024 Totals Total Total

Total Patients 7 1 8
Released within 23 hours/next day 6 1 7
Released within 48 hours
Released within 72 hours
Total Patients Hospitalized 1 1

Column Labels

May 2024 Totals

Adult  

Total

Juvenile 

Total Grand Total

Total Patients 7 1 8
Released within 23 hours/next day 2 1 3
Released within 48 hours 1 1
Released within 72 hours 3 3
Total Patients Hospitalized

Adult Juvenile Grand Total

June 2024 Totals Total Total

Total Patients 7 2 9
Released within 23 hours/next day 3 2 5
Released within 48 hours 2 2
Released within 72 hours 1 1
Released before Final Hearing
Total Patients Hospitalized 1 1

Adult Juvenile Grand Total

July 2024 Totals Total Total

Total Patients 6 1 7
Released within 23 hours/next day 2 2
Released within 48 hours 3 1 4
Released within 72 hours 1 1
Released before Final Hearing
Total Patients Hospitalized

Adult Juvenile Grand Total

August 2024 Totals Total Total

Total Patients 6 1 7
Released within 23 hours/next day 4 1 5
Released within 48 hours
Released within 72 hours 1 1
Released before Final Hearing
Total Patients Hospitalized 1 1

Adult Juvenile Grand Total

Septmber 2024 Totals Total Total

Total Patients 8 1 9
Released within 23 hours/next day 1 1
Released within 48 hours 5 5
Released within 72 hours
Released before Final Hearing 2 1 3
Total Patients Hospitalized

Adult Juvenile Grand Total

October 2024 Totals Total Total

Total Patients 3 0 3
Released within 23 hours/next day 2 0 1
Released within 48 hours
Released within 72 hours
Released before Final Hearing
Total Patients Hospitalized

Adult Juvenile Grand Total

November 2024 Totals Total Total

Total Patients
Released within 23 hours/next day
Released within 48 hours
Released within 72 hours
Released before Final Hearing
Total Patients Hospitalized

Adult Juvenile Grand Total

December 2024 Totals Total Total

Total Patients
Released within 23 hours/next day
Released within 48 hours
Released within 72 hours
Released before Final Hearing
Total Patients Hospitalized

2024 Yearly Totals

Adult  

Total

Juvenile 

Total Grand Total

Total Patients 49 9 58
Released within 23/hours/next day 24 7 30
Released within 48 hours 11 1 12
Released within 72 hours 7 0 1
Released before Final Hearing 2 1 3
Total Patients Hospitalized 3 0 3

Released within 

23/hours/next 

day

51%

Released within 

48 hours

24%

Released within 

72 hours

15%

Released before 

Final Hearing

4%

Total Patients 

Hospitalized

6%

SWEETATER CO. STABALIZATION BEDS 

MARCH - OCTOBER

2024

29



October 17, 2024 

SCS provides mental health and substance disorder services in Sweetwater County. The 
following positions offer direct services: Full-Licensed Clinicians, Provisional Clinicians, Certified 
Social Workers, Certified Addictions Practitioners, Case Managers, Peer Specialists, and 
Treatment Support Staff. SCS has a medical office that employs a Nurse Practitioner, Medical 
Assistant, and Medical Services Clerk. Prevention Specialists provide prevention services 
throughout the community. Ancillary services are also provided at SCS which include: Clerical, 
HR, Accounts Receivable/Payable, Purchasing, Data Clerk, Maintenance/Groundskeeper, 
and Information Technology/PC Network. Administration oversight is provided by Managers 
and Supervisors in all service areas, along with the CEO. Currently, SCS has 135.5 FTE’s.  

Current Openings at SCS: 

Licensed Clinician 1 
Treatment Support Staff 4.5 
HR Clerk    .5 
APRN – Psychiatric   1  
Administrative Assist.  1 

30



Position Range # FTE's Filled Vacant FTE's 

Chief Executive Officer 85 1 0

Program Operations Coordinator 46 2 0

Treatment Support - Recovery 32 30.5 4

Residential Coordinator 41 1 0

Treatment Support - Psychosocial 32 23 0.5

Case Manager Supervisor 46 1 0

Case Manager 39 13 0

Peer Specialist 34 5 0

Office Manager 52 1 0

Clerical 32 9.5 0

Administrative Assistant 36 0 1

Custodian 29 3 0

Human Resources Manager 55 1 0

Human Resources Payroll Clerk 40 1 0

Human Resources Clerk 36 1.5 0.5

Chief Financial Officer 69 1 0

A/R Supervisor 45 1 0

A/P Clerk 36 1 0

A/R Clerk 36 2 0

Data Clerk 36 1 0

MyAvatar Specialist 50 1 0

Purchasing Clerk 36 1 0

Medical Servicecs Clerk 36 1 0

APRN - General 81 1 0

APRN - Psychiatric 81 0 1

Medical Assistant 37 1 0

Maintenance Supervisor 64 0.5 0

Maintenance Level 2 36 1 0

Lawn Care - Groundskeeper 29 0.5 0

Network Administrator 67 1 0

PC/Network Support 50 1 0

Manager of Psychosocial Services 72 1 0

Manager of Mental Health Services 72 1 0

Manager of Children and Family Services 70 1 0

Recovery Services Manager 76 1 0

Outpatient Recovery Supervisor 66 1 0

Clinician - Fully Licensed 64 7 1

Provisional Clinician 56 9 0

Certified Addictions Practioner 49 1 0

Certified Social Worker 49 3 0

Prevention Specialist 39 2 0

October SCS Staffing Report

31



Range # Title

Hourly $ 10.55 $ 17.41

Monthly 1,828.67 3,017.73

Annual $ 21,944.00 $ 36,212.80

Hourly $ 10.81 $ 17.85

Monthly 1,874.38 3,093.18

Annual $ 22,492.60 $ 37,118.12

Hourly $ 11.08 $ 18.29

Monthly 1,921.24 3,170.51

Annual $ 23,054.92 $ 38,046.07

Hourly $ 11.36 $ 18.75

Monthly 1,969.27 3,249.77

Annual $ 23,631.29 $ 38,997.22

Hourly $ 11.65 $ 19.22

Monthly 2,018.51 3,331.01

Annual $ 24,222.07 $ 39,972.16

Hourly $ 11.94 $ 19.70

Monthly 2,068.97 3,414.29

Annual $ 24,827.62 $ 40,971.46

Hourly $ 12.23 $ 20.19

Monthly 2,120.69 3,499.65

Annual $ 25,448.31 $ 41,995.75

Hourly $ 12.54 $ 20.70

Monthly 2,173.71 3,587.14

Annual $ 26,084.52 $ 43,045.64

Hourly $ 12.85 $ 21.21

Monthly 2,228.05 3,676.82

Annual $ 26,736.63 $ 44,121.78

Hourly $ 13.18 $ 21.74

Monthly 2,283.75 3,768.74

Annual $ 27,405.05 $ 45,224.82

Hourly $ 13.50 $ 22.29

Monthly 2,340.85 3,862.95

Annual $ 28,090.18 $ 46,355.45

Hourly $ 13.84 $ 22.84

Monthly 2,399.37 3,959.53

Annual $ 28,792.43 $ 47,514.33

Hourly $ 14.19 $ 23.41

Monthly 2,459.35 4,058.52

Annual $ 29,512.24 $ 48,702.19

Janitor Hourly $ 14.54 $ 24.00

Lawn Care - Seasonal Monthly 2,520.84 4,159.98

Maintenance 1 Annual $ 30,250.05 $ 49,919.74

Hourly $ 14.91 $ 24.60

Monthly 2,583.86 4,263.98

Annual $ 31,006.30 $ 51,167.74

Hourly $ 15.28 $ 25.21

Monthly 2,648.45 4,370.58

Annual $ 31,781.45 $ 52,446.93

30

31

25

26

27

28

29

20

21

22

23

24 Bridges Cook

Pay Period

16

17

18

19

32



Scanning Clerk Hourly $ 15.66 $ 25.85

Office Support Staff Monthly 2,714.67 4,479.84

Residential Treatment Support Staff Annual $ 32,575.99 $ 53,758.11

Transportation

IOP Clerk

Daycare

Hourly $ 16.05 $ 26.49

Monthly 2,782.53 4,591.84

Annual $ 33,390.39 $ 55,102.06

Hourly $ 16.45 $ 27.15

Monthly 2,852.10 4,706.63

Annual $ 34,225.15 $ 56,479.61

Non-Degreed Case Manager Hourly $ 16.87 $ 27.83

CAPA Monthly 2,923.40 4,824.30

Benefit Enrollment Specialist Annual $ 35,080.78 $ 57,891.60

Maintenance 2 Hourly $ 17.29 $ 28.53

Purchasing Clerk Monthly 2,996.48 4,944.91

Human Resource Administrative Clerk Annual $ 35,957.80 $ 59,338.89

Medical Services Clerk

Accounts Receivable/Insurance Billing Clerk

Data Clerk

Administrative Assistant

Hourly $ 17.72 $ 29.24

Monthly 3,071.40 5,068.53

Annual $ 36,856.74 $ 60,822.36

Hourly $ 18.16 $ 29.97

Monthly 3,148.18 5,195.24

Annual $ 37,778.16 $ 62,342.92

Case Manager Hourly $ 18.62 $ 30.72

Prevention Specialist Monthly 3,226.88 5,325.12

Employment Specialist Annual $ 38,722.62 $ 63,901.49

Accounts Payable Clerk Hourly $ 19.08 $ 31.49

Payroll Clerk Monthly 3,307.56 5,458.25

Annual $ 39,690.68 $ 65,499.03

Hourly $ 19.56 $ 32.28

Monthly 3,390.25 5,594.71

Annual $ 40,682.95 $ 67,136.51

Hourly $ 20.05 $ 33.08

Monthly 3,475.00 5,734.58

Annual $ 41,700.02 $ 68,814.92

Hourly $ 20.55 $ 33.91

Monthly 3,561.88 5,877.94

Annual $ 42,742.52 $ 70,535.29

Hourly $ 21.06 $ 34.76

Monthly 3,650.92 6,024.89

Annual $ 43,811.09 $ 72,298.67

Hourly $ 21.59 $ 35.63

Monthly 3,742.20 6,175.51

Annual $ 44,906.36 $ 74,106.14

42

43 Licensed Practical Nurse

44

45 Accounts Receivable Supervisor

35

36

37 Medical Assistant

38

39

40

41 Residential Coordinator

32

33

34 Peer Specialist

33



Case Manager Supervisor Hourly $ 22.13 $ 36.52

Program Operations Supervisor Monthly 3,835.75 6,329.90

Annual $ 46,029.02 $ 75,958.80

Hourly $ 22.68 $ 37.43

Monthly 3,931.65 6,488.15

Annual $ 47,179.75 $ 77,857.77

Hourly $ 23.25 $ 38.37

Monthly 4,029.94 6,650.35

Annual $ 48,359.24 $ 79,804.21

Certified Social Worker Hourly $ 23.83 $ 39.33

Certified Addictions Worker Monthly 4,130.69 6,816.61

Annual $ 49,568.22 $ 81,799.31

PC Support Specialist Hourly $ 24.43 $ 40.31

myAvatar Specialist Monthly 4,233.95 6,987.02

Data Analyst 1 Annual $ 50,807.43 $ 83,844.30

Hourly $ 25.04 $ 41.32

Monthly 4,339.80 7,161.70

Annual $ 52,077.61 $ 85,940.40

Hourly $ 25.66 $ 42.35

Monthly 4,448.30 7,340.74

Annual $ 53,379.55 $ 88,088.91

Hourly $ 26.30 $ 43.41

Monthly 4,559.50 7,524.26

Annual $ 54,714.04 $ 90,291.14

Hourly $ 26.96 $ 44.49

Monthly 4,673.49 7,712.37

Annual $ 56,081.89 $ 92,548.42

Hourly $ 27.64 $ 45.61

Monthly 4,790.33 7,905.18

Annual $ 57,483.94 $ 94,862.13

Hourly $ 28.33 $ 46.75

Monthly 4,910.09 8,102.81

Annual $ 58,921.04 $ 97,233.68

Hourly $ 29.04 $ 47.92

Monthly 5,032.84 8,305.38

Annual $ 60,394.07 $ 99,664.52

Hourly $ 29.76 $ 49.11

Monthly 5,158.66 8,513.01

Annual $ 61,903.92 $ 102,156.13

Hourly $ 30.51 $ 50.34

Monthly 5,287.63 8,725.84

Annual $ 63,451.52 $ 104,710.04

Hourly $ 31.27 $ 51.60

Monthly 5,419.82 8,943.98

Annual $ 65,037.80 $ 107,327.79

Hourly $ 32.05 $ 52.89

Monthly 5,555.31 9,167.58

Annual $ 66,663.75 $ 110,010.98

Hourly $ 32.85 $ 54.21

Monthly 5,694.20 9,396.77

Annual $ 68,330.34 $ 112,761.26

58

59

60 Psychological Resident

61

62

53

54

55 Human Resource Manager

56 Provisional Clinician

57

47 Public Relations Specialist

48

49

50

51

52 Office Manager

46

34



Hourly $ 33.67 $ 55.57

Monthly 5,836.55 9,631.69

Annual $ 70,038.60 $ 115,580.29

Facility Maintenance Supervisor Hourly $ 34.51 $ 56.96

Data Architect Monthly 5,982.46 9,872.48

Licensed Clinician Annual $ 71,789.57 $ 118,469.80

Hourly $ 35.38 $ 58.38

Monthly 6,132.03 10,119.30

Annual $ 73,584.31 $ 121,431.54

Hourly $ 36.26 $ 59.84

Monthly 6,285.33 10,372.28

Annual $ 75,423.91 $ 124,467.33

Network Administrator Hourly $ 37.17 $ 61.34

Clinical Quality Review Monthly 6,442.46 10,631.58

Licensed Psychologist Annual $ 77,309.51 $ 127,579.01

Hourly $ 38.10 $ 62.87

Monthly 6,603.52 10,897.37

Annual $ 79,242.25 $ 130,768.49

Hourly $ 39.05 $ 64.44

Monthly 6,768.61 11,169.81

Annual $ 81,223.31 $ 134,037.70

Hourly $ 40.03 $ 66.05

Monthly 6,937.82 11,449.05

Annual $ 83,253.89 $ 137,388.64

Hourly $ 41.03 $ 67.70

Monthly 7,111.27 11,735.28

Annual $ 85,335.24 $ 140,823.36

Manager of Mental Health Services Hourly $ 42.05 $ 69.40

Manager of Psychosocial Services Monthly 7,289.05 12,028.66

Annual $ 87,468.62 $ 144,343.94

Hourly $ 43.10 $ 71.13

Monthly 7,471.28 12,329.38

Annual $ 89,655.33 $ 147,952.54

Hourly $ 44.18 $ 72.91

Monthly 7,658.06 12,637.61

Annual $ 91,896.72 $ 151,651.36

Hourly $ 45.29 $ 74.73

Monthly 7,849.51 12,953.55

Annual $ 94,194.13 $ 155,442.64

Hourly $ 46.42 $ 76.60

Monthly 8,045.75 13,277.39

Annual $ 96,548.99 $ 159,328.71

Hourly $ 47.58 $ 78.52

Monthly 8,246.89 13,609.33

Annual $ 98,962.71 $ 163,311.92

Hourly $ 48.77 $ 80.48

Monthly 8,453.06 13,949.56

Annual $ 101,436.78 $ 167,394.72

Hourly $ 49.99 $ 82.49

Monthly 8,664.39 14,298.30

Annual $ 103,972.70 $ 171,579.59

79

74

75

76 Manager of Recovery Services

77

78

69 Chief Financial Officer

70 Manager of Children and Family Services

71

72

73

63

64

65 Registered Nurse

66 Clinical Supervisor

67

68

35



Hourly $ 51.24 $ 84.55

Monthly 8,881.00 14,655.76

Annual $ 106,572.02 $ 175,869.08

Advanced Nurse Practitioner Hourly $ 52.52 $ 86.67

Physician Assistant Monthly 9,103.47 15,021.72

Annual $ 109,241.64 $ 180,260.60

Hourly $ 53.83 $ 88.83

Monthly 9,330.60 15,397.70

Annual $ 111,967.22 $ 184,772.45

Hourly $ 55.18 $ 91.05

Monthly 9,563.87 15,782.65

Annual $ 114,766.40 $ 189,391.76

Hourly $ 56.56 $ 93.33

Monthly 9,802.96 16,177.21

Annual $ 117,635.56 $ 194,126.56

Hourly $ 57.97 $ 95.66

Monthly 10,048.04 16,581.64

Annual $ 120,576.45 $ 198,979.72

84

85 Chief Executive Officer

80

81

82

83

36



CEO Report 

37



CEO REPORT 

OCTOBER 2024 

This month has been hectic with ARPA projects and making sure SCS is in compliance with all of 

ARPA requirements.  This is so exciting for the agency.  The Duran and Ankeny facilities will 

have the roofs removed in the next few weeks and materials will be ordered for the interior 

remodel.   The first time I informed the Board of the potential ARPA dollars was in July 2022.  All 

four of the buildings need the remodel.  There is approximately $70 to $80 million dollars of 

unspent ARPA dollars and there will be a decision from the Governor of how the money may be 

spent.    

Behavioral Health Redesign continue to proceed forward with approximately 50% of SCS clients 

enrolled.   This month SCS will be receiving its first true up funding.  For the first quarter, SCS 

was scheduled to receive a total of $1,398,212.83 with $715,478.32 from BHR payment so the 

true up will be $682,736.51.  The anticipated date of the true-up is October 25th.  There have 

been some discussion of needing FY 25/26 be the second year to assist the community mental 

health and substance disorder centers but there is no commitment.  This is a tremendous 

amount of work for the agency.  Another issue for agencies with residential beds is the low 

payment for bed days.  The rates are too low.  With the upcoming new legislative body, it will 

be interesting if there will be funding cuts to the Department of Health and specifically 

Behavioral Health.  SCS and the seven other centers continue to work collaborative with the 

State but there are challenges especially with acute, emergency clients who are unable to fill 

out the necessary paperwork and leave without completing the process.   

Last month, Governor Gordon came to Sweetwater County for a community discussion on 

suicide prevention.  Rock Springs Mayor Max Mickelson, Ms. April Thompson and Dr. Kent 

Corso joined the discussion with the Governor.  I previously sent an article to the board 

members on this discussion.  One of the goals for Dr. Corso is a community approach for suicide 

prevention and for all members of the community and stakeholders knowing signs and asking 

the question, “Are you thinking of ending your life,” and making connections for the person to 

receive help.  Sweetwater Coalition is important element for the community in suicide 

prevention but we all need to work together to address this area and empower people to reach 

out for help and for community members knowing resources.  I think it is also critically 

important to remember the person who ended their life did have a life and to celebrate the life 

they lived and to know there are family members that are left hurting and having to move 

forward.  I believe that Dr. Corso will assist Wyoming communities in moving forward in this 

area.  The State has the Wyoming Suicide and Crisis Lifeline at 988 or 1-800-273-TALK (8255) for 

help.  SCS provides emergency services for Sweetwater Community.   

38



Previous Business: 

ARPA Projects:  SCS board informed of the process with the last bid being opened on October 

10 and the Special Board meeting on October 15.   Sweetwater County commissioners will ratify 

at their next schedule meeting and SCS will meet the ARPA deadline.  

New Business: 

Plan of Safe Care Collaborative MOU:  This is an MOU between stakeholders for infants born to 

mothers using substances.  The MOU would allow the stakeholders to discuss specific cases.  

This document has been sent to the attorney. 

Board Action Required: 

Item A:  Crisis Opioid Agreement - Request for approval and signature for Crisis Opioid grant 

from the Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division in the amount of 

$139,125. The grant period is from the signature date through September 30, 2025.  This 

funding covers 375 bed days at a rate of $371 to provide detoxification and Medical Assisted 

Treatment.   

Item B:  Annual Insurance Premium Approvals - Review of annual premiums for general 

professional liability insurance.  

Item C:  Collection Agency Agreement: This is an agreement with Account Information 

Management, Corp. (A.I.M., Corp). The fees are 30% for judgements; 30% for open active 

accounts; 35% for legal and 35% forward.   

Item D:  Continuation of Contract with Open Minds/Mr. Ray Wolfe:  The original contract with 

Open Minds ends December 2025.  SCS would like to continue with Open Minds to March 2025 

and Open Minds is in agreement. 

Item E:  Board of Directors Policy & Procedure Manual 2.5 Meetings #5: “ In the event a 

regularly scheduled meeting must be canceled (i.e., a lack of quorum, adverse weather 

conditions, etc.), the Board expressly delegates to the CEO the duty and responsibility to review 

and authorize payments as necessary to meet staff payroll and accounts payable obligations 

subject to the CEO reporting to the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting the nature 

and amounts of payment authorized for processing.  The Board expressly delegates to the CEO 

the duty and responsibility of approving and signing pending contract renewals to ensure 

continuity of business operations.” 

39



Board Action 

Supporting 

Documents 

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



Attachment A 

Attachment A – Statement of Work 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 1 of 6 

Statement of Work (SOW) 
Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division (Agency) 
Services to be provided Southwest Counseling Service (Subrecipient)  
For services provided from Effective Date through October 20, 2025.  

Subrecipient must spend funds by September 30, 2025. 

I. Background/Introduction
Wyoming has been allocated funding through the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021
(ARPA) to mitigate the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on individuals with mental
illness and substance use disorders. This funding can be utilized to develop and expand the
use of Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved medications and digital therapeutics
in addiction treatment. These tools offer interactive, evidence-based behavioral therapies
for the treatment of opioid, alcohol, and tobacco use disorders.

II. Purpose
The purpose of this contract is to establish the terms and conditions by which the
Subrecipient shall address opioid use disorder (OUD) through the provision of medication-
assisted treatment (MAT) and other evidence-based OUD treatment, including residential
services.

III. Definitions

A. BHMS means the Behavioral Health Management System.

B. Client means an individual diagnosed with OUD or with a demonstrated history of
opioid overdose. Services provided under this Contract require Client consent,
including court-ordered Clients.

C. Medications for Opioid Use Disorder (MOUD) is defined as the required service
array included below. Telehealth and mobile applications may be utilized to
provide these services to increase capacity to support OUD.  Services recorded as
MAT do not include case finding, documentation or other administrative activities,
internal agency meetings, meetings about a Client unless the Client is present,
social or recreational activities, companionship or attendant care, staff travel time,
training, or skill training.

1. Care Coordination means the supervision of interdisciplinary care by
bringing together the different specialists who work with the Client,
monitoring and evaluating the care provided, and recommending
modifications to care. Care Coordination may be provided by a case
manager and is often considered a Case Management function.

2. Case Management means activities guided by a Client’s treatment plan, as
determined by the Client’s primary therapist, which bring services,
resources, and people together within a planned framework of action toward
the achievement of established treatment goals, including wrap-around
services. Case Management activities include, but are not limited to,

53



Attachment A 

Attachment A – Statement of Work 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 2 of 6 

advocacy, care management, crisis intervention, linkage with community 
services and resources, monitoring with follow-up, and referral. 

3. Clinical Treatment may include outpatient, intensive outpatient, day
treatment, partial hospitalization, or inpatient hospitalization.

4. Counseling means individual, family, or group therapy directly associated
with treatment of OUD that is provided by a person licensed or certified in
Wyoming to provide psychotherapeutic services.

5. Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) Services means the
administration of FDA-approved medications for the treatment of OUD
consistent with a clinical assessment and combined with the other services
and includes these three (3) components:

a. Prescription medication approved by the FDA and SAMHSA for
treatment of OUD which are listed as MAT here:
https://www.fda.gov/Drugs/DrugSafety/InformationbyDrugClass

b. Prescriber services provided by a physician, advanced practitioner
of nursing (APRN), physician assistant, or nurse practitioner.

c. Medication management including prescription monitoring,
monitoring for the effects of OUD medication, and other
medication-related services provided by or under the direct
supervision of a psychiatrist, physician, APRN, physician assistant,
registered nurse, or licensed practical nurse.

6. Peer Specialist Services means peer-to-peer services, individually or in a
group, working directly with a Client to help implement a treatment plan,
build hope, share positive growth, and retain in treatment.

D. Residential Treatment means services that are organized and staffed to provide
both general and specialized non-hospital-based interdisciplinary services twenty-
four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week for persons with substance use
disorder (SUD), including co-occurring mental illness. Residential treatment
services are organized to provide environments in which persons reside and receive
services from personnel who are trained in the delivery of services for persons with
behavioral health disorders or related problems.

1. Residential Treatment Services may be free-standing or hospital-based. A
residential treatment facility operates twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven
(7) days per week, and offers evaluation and a planned regimen of treatment
services, including the staff-monitored administration of prescribed
medication. The goal of residential treatment is to provide a protective
environment that includes support and treatment for addictive and co-
occurring disorders and supervision.

54



Attachment A 

Attachment A – Statement of Work 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 3 of 6 

E. State Opioid Response (SOR) grant is a program that addresses reducing unmet
needs and opioid overdose-related deaths through treatment, harm reduction, and
recovery activities for OUD.

F. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) is
the agency within the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services that leads
public health efforts to advance the behavioral health of the nation.

G. Warm Hand-off means a transfer of care between two (2) members of a healthcare
team with the Client present during the transfer and includes priority into care, Care
Coordination, and sharing of records.

IV. Scope of Work   Subrecipient shall:

A. Provide services, as defined in Section III.D Residential Treatment Services, to
Clients, as deemed medically necessary. The determination of medical necessity
will be made in accordance with established clinical guidelines and assessments
and in alignment with the Subrecipient’s policies.

B. Implement a service delivery model that enables the full spectrum of treatment
services, which facilitates positive treatment outcomes and long-term recovery
from OUD.

C. Make services defined under Section III.C., MOUD readily available to Clients,
consistent with clinical assessments and Client consent.

D. Coordinate with the SOR Program to ensure clients leaving OUD residential
services are provided a warm hand-off into MOUD outpatient services.

E. Ensure voluntary participation in services. Upon request, provide the Agency with
a copy of privacy, consent, and other admission forms. Revise forms and policies,
as necessary, to meet the confidentiality and Client protection requirements of the
SOR Grant.

F. Coordinate with the community to ensure potential Clients pending release from
prison, jail, emergency room, hospitalization, and residential treatment are
provided a warm hand-off into MOUD.

G. Provide treatment transition and coverage for individuals reentering communities
from criminal justice settings or other rehabilitative settings.

H. Utilize evidence-based services and practices appropriate to the treatment of OUD.
Utilize practices likely to retain Clients in treatment for as long as practicable to
reduce the likelihood of Clients returning to using or experiencing overdose.
Practices may include utilization of Telehealth and mobile applications designed to
support MOUD.

55



Attachment A 

Attachment A – Statement of Work 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 4 of 6 

I. Ensure necessary training and supplies related to starting or maintaining services
provided under the Contract are acquired, including safe storage of medications,
staff training, and compliance with all Drug Enforcement Agency and Substance
Abuse Services Administration requirements.

J. Report any sentinel event within one (1) business day to the Agency’s Mental
Health and Substance Abuse Section Administrator or designee via telephone and
follow up in writing. A sentinel event is any death or serious physical or
psychological injury to a Client or to a Client who has left the program within the
past thirty (30) days.

K. Achieve the following goals:

1. Utilize the Daily Living Activities (DLA-20) Functional Assessment tool,
or, as applicable, the DLA Functional Assessment tool or Youth Version;
at admission, every ninety (90) days or more frequently as necessary, and
at discharge for all clients, age six (6) and above, receiving mental health or
substance use disorder services under the Contract.

L. Bill insurance and other third-party payers before utilizing funds from the Contract.

M. Maintain financial accounting records and documents for seven (7) years in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and provide
financial reports as requested by the Agency. Accounting may include ten percent
(10%) indirect costs. Maintain financial records that support all services and reports
submitted to the Agency.

N. Comply with all requirements of the Contract, provide all Contract services, and
report all hours of services for the full Performance Period of the Contract. The
Subrecipient shall provide services during each month of the Contract term.

O. Services provided under the Contract may not be denied or delayed because of a
Client’s inability to pay, because of the Client’s place of residence in Wyoming, or
participation in any other state or federal programs.

P. Provide services with the input of people in recovery from OUD in the planning
and implementation of the way services are provided.

Q. Cooperate with the Ombudsman program in any investigation and resolution of
complaints concerning consumer access to services conducted through the
Ombudsman office.

R. Maintain written policies and procedures for filing and determination of grievances
by employees, clients, and community human service agencies. These policies and
procedures shall be available to the Agency upon request.

56



Attachment A 

Attachment A – Statement of Work 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 5 of 6 

S. All services required under this Contract are to be fully covered by the terms herein
and shall not be billed or charged to any other contract, agreement, or source of
funds.

T. Withholding of Funds

1. Failure to deliver contracted services, meet performance targets, or submit
deliverables as outlined in this Contract may result in one (1) or more of the
following actions at the Agency’s discretion:

a. Reduction or withholding of payment(s) until the matter is resolved;

b. Issuance of Corrective Action Plan (CAP)

i. Failure to implement the CAP may result in the withholding of
payment(s), termination of the Contract, or both.

V. Deliverables

TOTAL PAYMENT UNDER THIS SOW NOT TO EXCEED ONE HUNDRED
THIRTY-NINE THOUSAND, ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS
($139,125.00).

DELIVERABLES TIMELINE PAYMENT 
A. Program Management September 30, 2024 – 

October 20, 2025 
Payment integrated 
into the 
reimbursements 

1. Provide additional information to the
Agency as requested. 

2. Adhere to Attachment C, Data
Management Plan. 

3. Submit a complete and accurate
Attachment B, Invoice, with sufficient 
supporting documentation no later than the 
twentieth (20th) day of the following month of 
service. 

a. The following statement must be
included on all invoices and reports: “I certify to 
the best of my knowledge and belief that the 
information provided herein is true, complete, and 
accurate. I am aware that the provision of false, 
fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the 
omission of any material fact, may subject me to 
criminal, civil, or administrative consequences 
including, but not limited to violations of U.S. 
Code Title 18, Sections 2, 1001, 1343 and Title 
31, Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812.”  

57



Attachment A 

Attachment A – Statement of Work 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 6 of 6 

DELIVERABLES TIMELINE PAYMENT 
B. Provide MOUD and Residential Services Effective Date – 

September 30, 2025 
1. Provide residential services to clients

with OUD as described in Section III.D. 
$371.00 per day up to 
375 days 

2. Institute processes that result in the
timely delivery of all services under Section 
III.C., Medications for Opioid Use Disorder
(MOUD), to clients in residential services.

3. Implement warm hand-off policies for all
clients receiving MOUD and residential services 
into the SOR program prior to residential 
discharge. 

4. Provide MOUD to all enrolled Clients for
as long as practicable. 

VI. Changes to Statement of Work
Subrecipient shall submit a written request to the Agency if changes to this SOW are
desired. The request shall include the changes being requested and the reason for the
changes.  The Agency shall review the request and any additional information the Agency
may request regarding the changes and provide the Subrecipient with written notice of
acceptance or denial of the request within thirty (30) days.

In the event it is determined by the Agency that a change to this SOW is required, an
amendment shall be made to the Contract in accordance with Section 8.A. of the Contract.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE WAS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

58



Attachment B

Invoice Number

Submit To:

Invoice Month

Totals

Monthly Total

Daily Rate $371.00 

 $ -   

Date

Subgrantee:

Behavioral Health Division, Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services Section

I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the information provided herein is true, complete, and accurate. I am 
aware that the provision of false, fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to 
criminal, civil, or administrative consequences including, but not limited to violations of U.S. Code Title 18, Sections 2, 1001, 
1343 and Title 31, Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812.

Current Invoice
Bed Days (Must match BHMS)

Total Month Request  

Sign

Services this Month

Southwest Counseling Service

BHD.MHSAinvoices@wyo.gov
Subject Line: SOR 4 Invoice

Attachment B -  Invoice
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division

and Soutwest Counseling Service
Page 1 of 1

59

mailto:BHD.MHSAinvoices@wyo.gov
mailto:BHD.MHSAinvoices@wyo.gov
mailto:BHD.MHSAinvoices@wyo.gov
mailto:BHD.MHSAinvoices@wyo.gov


Attachment C 
Data Management Plan – Crisis Opioid Residential Only 

Attachment C – Data Management Plan 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 1 of 8 

Acronyms/Definitions: 

BHMS: Behavioral Health Management System 
COB: Close of Business 

ESR: Event Service Record.  This is the data set submitted to BHMS that contains the service performed and the unit(s) of time the 
Client spent receiving that service. 

Interim: An Interim record is an updated admission record. Interim records are required, at a minimum, every three (3) months for 
each open Client or any time key data changes. 

Data Unit: The Agency Behavioral Health Division Data Unit provides training and technical assistance in using BHMS. Manages the 
reporting process and data needs for the providers and the Agency.  

MIS: Management Information System. Refers to the core demographic, diagnostic, and clinical data set submitted to BHMS. The 
MIS data can be submitted as an Admit, Discharge, or Interim record set. 

OUD: Opioid Use Disorder diagnosis 

RaHS: The Residential and Housing Services module within BHMS.  This is used for tracking real-time usage and waiting lists for 
SUD Residential beds.  

SUD: Substance Use Disorder 

Data Deliverables: 

The below table demonstrates the Contract deliverables due that have not been detailed in other areas of the Contract. 

60



Attachment C 
Data Management Plan – Crisis Opioid Residential Only 

Attachment C – Data Management Plan 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 2 of 8 

ID Category Requirement Due Date How to Report Fidelity/Monitoring 
1 Completeness All Client records submitted to 

BHMS using designated agency 
codes 

Annually by October fifteenth 
(15th) for the previous federal 
fiscal year (FFY) (Ex: FFY24 
data must be completed and 
finalized by COB October 15, 
2024; FFY25 data must be 
completed and finalized by 
COB October 15, 2025) 

BHMS: MIS and 
ESR 

Site Review/Desk Audit: 
Spot Check 

2 Completeness Client records must have no missing 
values in required fields 

At time of submission BHMS: MIS and 
ESR 

BHMS Level 1 
validation 

3 Completeness Less than five percent (5%) of 
required fields in a data set, per 
Client, can be marked as "unknown"  
The selection of "unknown" should 
be a last resort 

At time of submission BHMS: MIS and 
ESR 

BHMS Level 2 
validation  

4 Completeness Complete an Interim record at least 
every three (3) months for each open 
Client 

Annually by October fifteenth 
(15th) for the previous federal 
fiscal year (FFY) (Ex: FFY24 
data must be completed and 
finalized by COB October 15, 
2024; FFY25 data must be 
completed and finalized by 
COB October 15, 2025) 

BHMS: Upload or 
manually enter (MIS 
Interim form) 

BHMS Level 3 
validation  

5 Completeness Submit the Daily Living Activities 
(DLA-20) Functional Assessment 
Tool data set at admission, every 
ninety (90) days, and at discharge for 
each Client 

Annually by October fifteenth 
(15th) for the previous federal 
fiscal year (FFY) (Ex: FFY24 
data must be completed and 
finalized by COB October 15, 
2024; FFY25 data must be 
completed and finalized by 
COB October 15, 2025) 

BHMS: Upload or 
manually enter (MIS 
form)  

BHMS Level 3 
validation, DLA-20 
tickler list 

61



Attachment C 
Data Management Plan – Crisis Opioid Residential Only 

Attachment C – Data Management Plan 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 3 of 8 

6 Completeness All client data regarding use 
of block grants funded for SUD 
Residential beds must be submitted  

Current within three (3) days of 
change(s) occurring 

BHMS: Residential 
and Housing 
Services (RaHS) 
module 

Internal query- RaHS 
Timeliness Report 

7 Completeness Social Security numbers are required 
for all Clients. It is permissible to 
have up to five percent (5%) missing 
per agency due to immigrant status or 
similar anomalies  

At time of submission BHMS: Upload or 
manually enter (MIS 
Admission form) 

BHMS SSN Monitoring 
Report 

8 Timeliness Submit MIS Admissions, Interims, 
and Discharges for all Clients in 
treatment (except drug court 
participants) 

Annually by October fifteenth 
(15th) for the previous federal 
fiscal year (FFY) (Ex: FFY24 
data must be completed and 
finalized by COB October 15, 
2024; FFY25 data must be 
completed and finalized by 
COB October 15, 2025) 

BHMS: Upload or 
manually enter (MIS 
forms) 

BHMS Level 3 
validation 

9 Timeliness Submit ESR's for all Clients in 
treatment (except drug court 
participants) 

Annually by October fifteenth 
(15th) for the previous federal 
fiscal year (FFY) (Ex: FFY24 
data must be completed and 
finalized by COB October 15, 
2024; FFY25 data must be 
completed and finalized by 
COB October 15, 2025) 

BHMS: Upload or 
manually enter (ESR 
form) 

BHMS Level 3 
validation 

10 Timeliness Submit the DLA-20 data set at 
admission, every ninety (90) days, 
and at discharge for each Client 

Annually by October fifteenth 
(15th) for the previous federal 
fiscal year (FFY) (Ex: FFY24 
data must be completed and 
finalized by COB October 15, 
2024; FFY25 data must be 
completed and finalized by 
COB October 15, 2025) 

BHMS: Upload or 
manually enter (MIS 
form)  

BHMS Level 3 
validation, DLA-20 
tickler list 

62



Attachment C 
Data Management Plan – Crisis Opioid Residential Only 

Attachment C – Data Management Plan 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 4 of 8 

11 Timeliness Update use of SUD Residential beds Current within three (3) days of 
change(s) occurring 

BHMS: RaHS 
module 

Internal query- RaHS 
Timeliness Report  

12 Timeliness Update waiting list for SUD 
Residential beds 

Current within three (3) days of 
change(s) occurring 

BHMS: RaHS 
module 

Waitlist Report, spot 
check via phone calls, 
RaHS Module  

13 Accuracy Monthly reconciliation completed of 
all MIS & ESR data.  

Monthly by the fifteenth (15th) 
day, beginning November 15th, 
2024 

BHMS: Reports: 
Monthly Accuracy 
Report 

Less than five percent 
(5%) difference between 
Subrecipient’s data and 
BHMS data by required 
date and as 
acknowledged through a  
“Yes” on the Monthly 
Accuracy Report.  If 
they don’t match, 
respond with a “No” and 
send an email to the 
BHMS helpdesk at 
wdh-bhd-datasystem-
helpdesk@wyo.gov as 
to why they don’t match 
and what is being done 
to correct it 

14 Accuracy Any significant change in data 
elements for a particular Client needs 
to be reported to BHMS via an Interim 
record  

Annually by October fifteenth 
(15th) for the previous federal 
fiscal year (FFY) (Ex: FFY24 
data must be completed and 
finalized by COB October 15, 
2024; FFY25 data must be 
completed and finalized by 
COB October 15, 2025) 

BHMS: Upload or 
manually enter (MIS 
Interim form) 

Spot check via desk 
audit or on-site review 

15 Accuracy Invoicing: The data in BHMS must be 
consistent with the invoiced number 
of Client served during the month 

To be counted for payment, 
BHMS data must be entered by 
the fifteenth (15th) day of the 
month following the service. 

Attachment B, 
Invoice 

Data in BHMS will be 
checked to ensure it 
matches the invoiced 
amounts.  

63

mailto:wdh-bhd-datasystem-helpdesk@wyo.gov
mailto:wdh-bhd-datasystem-helpdesk@wyo.gov


Attachment C 
Data Management Plan – Crisis Opioid Residential Only 

Attachment C – Data Management Plan 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 5 of 8 

Completeness: 
In addition to the above completeness requirements, there is also an automated process that occurs in BHMS when a Client has not received 
any services for more than ninety (90) days: a system generated (auto-discharge) will occur.  This mechanism copies the most recent MIS form 
(which can be an Admit or Interim form) set of data to auto-populate the discharge.  It is in the Subrecipient’s best interest to limit these as 
much as possible as it will negatively skew outcomes by the lack of improvement. The Subrecipient can use the Auto-Discharge Report and 
System Discharged Episodes Report in BHMS to monitor these episodes so that more data can be entered. In cases where an admission record 
has been submitted to BHMS, but no services were delivered, the system will delete the record.  

Timeliness: 
Although the data for each federal fiscal year is not technically due until October fifteenth (15th) of the following federal fiscal year, it is highly 
recommended that accurate and complete data is submitted as early as possible.    

Accuracy: 
A large portion of accuracy derives from using set definitions for each data element collected by the BHMS data system. The BHMS Data 
Specification documents listed below define the fields, their rules, and the mechanism to upload or enter the data into BHMS. It is imperative 
that any persons uploading or entering data into BHMS are well versed in these documents and refer to them regularly. 

a. FY25 MIS Client and Treatment Data Rules
b. FY25 MIS Master Data Set
c. FY25 RaHS Master Data Set
d. FY25 Event Service Record (ESR) Rules
e. FY25 ESR Master Data Set

Invoice must be received by the 
twentieth (20th) day of the 
following month 

16 User Access Notify Agency if any Subrecipient 
staff with access to BHMS leaves 
employment or no longer requires 
access or a user role  

Immediately Contact Data Unit BHMS Login report, 
Quarterly User Audit 

17 User Access Respond to quarterly User Audit Within 1 week of receipt Contact Data Unit Spot check via email 
response 

64



Attachment C 
Data Management Plan – Crisis Opioid Residential Only 

Attachment C – Data Management Plan 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 6 of 8 

f. FY25 MIS XML Schema
g. FY25 ESR XML Schema

Another significant portion of accuracy is reconciling what is in BHMS versus the Subrecipient’s own data system and records. This is required 
and is accomplished through signing off on the monthly accuracy report. If discrepancies are found between the Subrecipient’s own system and 
BHMS, it is imperative that the Subrecipient work to remedy these.  If the Subrecipient suspects there is an issue within BHMS, contact a 
member of the Data Unit that supports BHMS.  

BHMS Validation: 
Much of the accuracy and quality of the data within BHMS is created through the data definitions and through extensive validation built into 
the system.  There are three (3) levels of validation: Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3. 

Level 1 covers field-level validation.  This validation goes through the upload file to ensure each of the fields is in the correct format.  This 
includes validating date fields are in date format, numeric fields only have numbers (no alpha or special characters), and the correct number of 
digits in numeric fields.  For example, the Medicaid ID field validation ensures the field is numeric only and that it contains either 9 or 10 
digits.    

Level 2 validates the property on the object.  For example, the residence field requires a value of 1-9.  Level 2 validation ensures the upload file 
does not contain 12 or any other number except for 1 through 9 in this field.  Also included in this level of validation comparing values between 
fields within the form. For example, if the Funding Source field contains the value for Medicaid, the Medicaid Number field must have a value. 

Level 3 validates property and object.  This level compares data previously entered into the database with data in the upload file. For example, 
if the upload file contains a discharge form, Level 3 validation will ensure there is an admit form that matches the same Client in the same 
program so a coherent episode of care can be constructed (i.e., if the Client wasn't admitted they can't be discharged). 

If any of the 3 levels is violated, the system will communicate an error and the provider must correct the data and upload or enter the corrected 
data. 

BHMS User Access:  
Access to BHMS may be requested by using the “Sign Up” option on the BHMS login screen or by contacting a member of the Data Unit. Any 
request for access will not be approved until the following requirements have been completed: 

1. The request for access has been verified by a Subrecipient designated Access Control Contact. If a request for access for a new user did
not originate from the Subrecipient’s designated Access Control Contact, a member of the Data Unit will contact the Access Control
Contact to verify the request is valid.

65



Attachment C 
Data Management Plan – Crisis Opioid Residential Only 

Attachment C – Data Management Plan 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 7 of 8 

2. The requestor has completed system role specific training with a member of the Data Unit.

In the event that a user with access to BHMS leaves employment with the Subrecipient or no longer requires access or user role within BHMS, 
the Subrecipient’s designated Access Control Contact must notify a member of the Data Unit immediately. Failure to report changes in required 
access may result in improper or inappropriate access to confidential and protected Client information. To further mitigate the risk to protected 
information, the Data Unit conducts quarterly BHMS User Audits. A member of the Data Unit will contact the Subrecipient’s designated Access 
Control Contact with a current list of users with active system access. The Access Control Contact must verify each user on the list and 
communicate any changes in required access within one (1) week of receiving the list.  

Key Data Points and BHMS Crosswalk 

Client information and ESRs are recorded using the designated agency code.  
Record services listed in Attachment A, Statement of Work, Section III.H., Medication Assisted Treatment. 

● ESR funding source recorded as “Other”
● Any services not listed are not recorded using the agency code and are not eligible for funding

Scope of Work Data Element Where to report BHMS Crosswalk 
III.I. Client: Limited to OUD diagnosis, demonstrated
history of opioid overdose.

BHMS Opioid or Stimulant Drug Problem 1, 2, 3, or 4: 
Includes Heroin, Non-Rx Methadone, Other 
Opiates and Synthetics, Buprenorphine, 
Methamphetamine, Cocaine/Crack, Other 
Amphetamines, or Other Stimulants  

III.H. & III.M. Number of persons served during the
month

BHMS Monthly Report 

III.F. Graduation rate BHMS Numerator: Treatment Complete 
Denominator: Treatment Complete + No Show 
+ Other + Unknown + Terminated by Facility +
Against Medical Advice

BHMS ESR Crosswalk 
Treatment Component BHMS ESR 
Care Coordination Case Management 
Case Management Case Management 

Group Case Management 

66



Attachment C 
Data Management Plan – Crisis Opioid Residential Only 

Attachment C – Data Management Plan 
Contract between Wyoming Department of Health, Behavioral Health Division 

and Southwest Counseling Service 
Page 8 of 8 

Clinical Assessment Clinical Assessment 
Counseling Agency-based Individual/Family Therapy 

Community-based Individual/Family Therapy 
Group Therapy 
Intensive Outpatient Group 
Women’s Intensive Outpatient Group 

MAT for Opioid Use MAT for Opioid Use 
Medication Services Medication Management: Psychiatrist, General Physician, Advanced Practice 

Registered Nurse, Physician Assistant, Registered Nurse, Licensed Practical Nurse 
Peer Specialist Services Peer Specialist Individual, Peer Specialist Group 
Supported Employment Supported Employment 
Telehealth/Mobile Applications Record based on the MAT service provided 

67



68



69


	Board Packet Cover
	Self-Pay Under $25 September 2024
	Self-Pay Over $25 September 2024
	Bankruptcy September 2024
	Balance Sheet - Sep 2024
	AR Report - Sep 2024
	Sep 2024 Rev
	Sep 2024 Exps
	B. Attachment B Invoice SWC.pdf
	Sheet1




